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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The White Pine County Courthouse is an Italianate Survival style building constructed 
in 1908-09 by contractors, R. E. Dodson and G. W. Weller according to plans by 
architect, George T. Beardslee. The building, which has served as the county court­ 
house since its construction, occupies a landscaped hilltop site adjoining the main 
commercial district of the City of Ely. The building retains a high degree of 
architectural integrity despite minor alterations to the original fabric.

The two-story, eight-bay building is constructed of coursed, dressed ashlar supported 
by a raised basement of poured concrete. The symmetrical building rises to a shallow 
hipped roof banded by a low parapet with a simple cornice. The eave line of the 
building is accented by a projecting dentiat cornice with full entablature. Building 
corners are accented by coursed ashlar pilasters which rise the height of the building, 
Windows are contemporary (c.1970), one-light-over-one-light sash set in simple metal 
frames. Windows are supported by slightly projecting, cut ashlar sills. Basement 
windows are found beneath segmental arches. The basement and first story level are 
banded by a slightly projecting water table.

The principal elevation includes a slightly projecting pavillion occupying the central 
two entry bays and rising the height of the structure. This pavillion terminates in 
a pedimented gable.

A single story rectangular cupola dominates the structure's roof line above the 
building's entrance pavillion. This cupola includes a shallow dome with central 
flag pole.

The building's central, recessed, double-door entry is beneath an open porch supported 
by simple piers. The roof line of the porch includes a full cornice while its flat 
roof is accented by an open balustrade with turned balusters.

The interior of the rectangular plan courthouse includes a central stairhall flanked 
by offices on the first story and a second story courtroom. The interior of the 
building retains many of its original finishes including woodwork and panelled 
wainscotting.

A two-story jail addition (1925) is located to the rear of the courthouse. This 
addition is of contemporary design and is clearly distinguishable from the original 
building.
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Summary

The White Pine County Courthouse is an architecturally significant building important 
for its association with the historical development of White Pine County and the City 
of Ely. The simple, Italianate Survival style, public structure is one of the most 
substantial buildings in White Pine County and serves as a visual focus for the City 
of Ely. The courthouse has continuously housed the county's government since 1909.

Elaboration

White Pine County was created by the Nevada State Legislature on April 1, 1869. The 
original county seat was located in Hamilton, a mining boom town and center for the 
White Pine District silver strikes of the 1860 ? s. The county*s first courthouse was 
a substantial brick structure which burned in 1885. Hamilton fell into decline and 
two years later, in 1887, the county seat was relocated to the copper mining center 
of Ely 36 miles to the east.

In 1887 the White Pine County Commissioners authorized the erection of a new courthouse 
in Ely. The 1887 building served as the county courthouse for the next twenty years. 
After substantial alteration and addition to the 1887 building, the county undertook 
the construction of the present courthouse. The 1887 building is now part of a large 
hospital complex.

The 1908 courthouse was built to the west of its predecessor and has served the 
county as a courthouse since that time. County commissioners awarded the construction 
contract to R. E. Dodson and G. W. Weller for $49,688. Under the supervision of 
George T. Beardslee, the architect, the structure was completed by 1909.

Although reflecting nineteenth-century architectural fashion, the White Pine
County Courthouse is a rare example of an architect-designed public building
in eastern Nevada. The building, which dominates the commercial district of
the City of Ely, is a well designed governmental structure reflecting the county's
conservative design approach. The building is one of the most substantial structures
in the county and one of the few to follow a well developed architectural program.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The White Pine County Courthouse occupies a landscaped site bounded by Campton and 
Clark Streets in Ely, Nevada. An undimensioned plat of the site is on record with 
the White Pine County Assessor's office at the courthouse. This plat constitutes 
the county's legal description for the building.
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